

**2003 DRAFTING REQUEST**

**Bill**

Received: **03/27/2003**

Received By: **mkunkel**

Wanted: **As time permits**

Identical to LRB:

For: **Carol Roessler (608) 266-5300**

By/Representing: **Sara**

This file may be shown to any legislator: **NO**

Drafter: **mkunkel**

May Contact: **Peter Theo**

Addl. Drafters:

Subject: **Occupational Reg. - misc**

Extra Copies: **PJH**

Submit via email: **YES**

Requester's email: **Sen.Roessler@legis.state.wi.us**

Carbon copy (CC:) to: **petertheo@tds.net**

---

**Pre Topic:**

No specific pre topic given

---

**Topic:**

Continuing education for dental hygienists

---

**Instructions:**

See Attached

---

**Drafting History:**

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?							State
/1	mkunkel 03/31/2003	kgilfoy 03/31/2003	rschluet 03/31/2003		amentkow 03/31/2003		State
/2	mkunkel 06/24/2003	kgilfoy 06/24/2003	jfrantze 06/25/2003		sbasford 06/25/2003	amentkow 07/11/2003	

Vers.    Drafted    Reviewed    Typed    Proofed    Submitted    Jacketed    Required

FE Sent For: *at intro 8/14/03*

<END>

**2003 DRAFTING REQUEST**

**Bill**

Received: **03/27/2003**

Received By: **mkunkel**

Wanted: **As time permits**

Identical to LRB:

For: **Carol Roessler (608) 266-5300**

By/Representing: **Sara**

This file may be shown to any legislator: **NO**

Drafter: **mkunkel**

May Contact: **Peter Theo**

Addl. Drafters:

Subject: **Occupational Reg. - misc**

Extra Copies: **PJH**

Submit via email: **YES**

Requester's email: **Sen.Roessler@legis.state.wi.us**

Carbon copy (CC:) to: **petertheo@tds.net**

**Pre Topic:**

No specific pre topic given

**Topic:**

Continuing education for dental hygienists

**Instructions:**

See Attached

**Drafting History:**

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?							State
/1	mkunkel 03/31/2003	kgilfoy 03/31/2003	rschluet 03/31/2003		amentkow 03/31/2003		State
/2	mkunkel 06/24/2003	kgilfoy 06/24/2003	jfrantze 06/25/2003		sbasford 06/25/2003		

Vers.    Drafted    Reviewed    Typed    Proofed    Submitted    Jacketed    Required

FE Sent For:

**<END>**

2003 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 03/27/2003

Received By: mkunkel

Wanted: As time permits

Identical to LRB:

For: Carol Roessler (608) 266-5300

By/Representing: Sara

This file may be shown to any legislator: NO

Drafter: mkunkel

May Contact: Peter Theo

Addl. Drafters:

Subject: Occupational Reg. - misc

Extra Copies: PJH

Submit via email: YES

Requester's email: Sen.Roessler@legis.state.wi.us

Carbon copy (CC:) to:

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Continuing education for dental hygienists

Instructions:

See Attached

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?							State
/1	mkunkel 03/31/2003	kgilfoy 03/31/2003	rschluet 03/31/2003		amentkow 03/31/2003		

FE Sent For:

Handwritten notes: 12-6/24, 6/25, 6/25, Jeph

<END>

2003 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 03/27/2003

Received By: mkunkel

Wanted: As time permits

Identical to LRB:

For: Carol Roessler (608) 266-5300

By/Representing: Sara

This file may be shown to any legislator: NO

Drafter: mkunkel

May Contact: Peter Theo

Addl. Drafters:

Subject: Occupational Reg. - misc

Extra Copies: PJH

Submit via email: YES

Requester's email: Sen.Roessler@legis.state.wi.us

Carbon copy (CC:) to:

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Continuing education for dental hygienists

Instructions:

See Attached

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
1?	mkunkel	1-3/31 Kung					

FE Sent For:

3-31-2<END>

**Kunkel, Mark**

---

**From:** Peter Theo

**Sent:** Monday, March 24, 2003 10:31 AM

**To:** Kunkel, Mark

**Subject:** draft for Dental Hygienist's

Hi Mark:

Senator Roessler's staff, Sara, told me that she passed on a bill draft request to you regarding CE for Dental Hygienist's. I represent them and was wondering if that draft is in the works yet? I have a client meeting coming up this weekend and I wanted to give them an update.

Could you email me or call at 332-6828 (Cell)?

Thanks Mark. I know you are busy so I appreciate your response.

Peter

03/24/2003



# CE Requirement for Dental Hygiene License Renewal in Wisconsin

## WDHA proposes the following -

Basic proposal

- That a continuing education requirement for dental hygiene license renewal be established in statutes and administrative rules beginning \_\_\_\_\_.
- That twenty (20) continuing education units (CEUs) will be required per two-year renewal period. ✓
- That the WDEB establish administrative rules for approving courses that will be acceptable for meeting the CEU requirement. (WDHA is prepared to suggest guidelines for this process)
  - Speakers' qualifications are appropriate to the topic and clearly stated
  - Course description is given
  - Course outline and schedule is given
  - Course objectives are given
  - References and citations are clearly stated
  - There is significant clinical value or scientific content
  - Organization offering the course is clearly stated
  - Affiliations and sponsorships are disclosed
- That the WDEB establish administrative rules for auditing and verification of the CE requirements.

WDHA's 2003 Officers and Trustees have reached a consensus regarding additional details and would offer these as suggestions to the WDEB for consideration:

- **No more than two of the credits in the two year renewal period can be earned through CPR / BLS certification courses.**
  - Justification: While it's desirable to require CPR certification, it would be counter-intuitive to enable the licensee to obtain all their CEUs by taking one or two lengthy CPR courses each year.
- **Proof of CPR certification *must* be submitted at the time of license renewal (a copy of the CPR certification card or signature on the license renewal form)**
  - Justification: Currently there is language in the administrative rules regarding CPR certification. It states that it is considered unprofessional conduct to practice dental hygiene without current CPR certification. Requiring a signature verification or a copy of the CPR certification card would strengthen this rule.
- **Two of the credits in the two-year renewal period *must* be earned through infection control training. (E.g., OSHA updates, in-services, or credited courses) Verification will be accomplished by the signature of the sponsor / instructor / presenter.**
  - Justification: Currently, OSHA mandates that employers of health care workers must offer or enable their employees to receive one hour of training in infection control once a year. There is no system of verification other than follow-up after a complaint has been filed. Having language in the state's administrative rules would strengthen and support this federal mandate without actually increasing the required hours of training.
- **No more than 5 of the 20 credits can be earned through self-study, correspondence or internet courses. (25% of the 20 credits required in the two year renewal period)**
  - Justification: Currently, there are many excellent courses available through electronic and self-study means. Those hygienists who have access to the internet would benefit from this rule by not having to travel long distances to meet all of the CEU requirements.

BLS =  
Basic Life  
Support

- That 5 credits in a two-year renewal period *may* be earned through volunteer activities. (E.g., Sealant projects, oral health education, oral health screenings, providing dental hygiene services in a free clinic.) Verification may be accomplished by the signature of a representative in the organization that receives the volunteer services, on a standardized form.
  - Justification: WDHA recognizes that volunteer oral health activities do not qualify as continuing education, per se, but wishes to support and reward the efforts of those clinicians who give of their time and talents by providing educational, preventive and therapeutic services in their communities. By allowing some (but not all) of the CEU requirements to be earned this way, we believe that volunteerism will increase and that communities would benefit.
- That the licensee will be primarily responsible for tracking of CE courses taken and earned credits. At the time of license renewal an updated application (with a place for the licensee's signature, verifying that s/he has fulfilled the requirement) would be submitted to the WDEB along with the licensing fees. The WDEB may then audit these report forms either randomly, or on a prescribed schedule. At the time of an audit, the licensee may be asked to show further evidence of having taken the courses (E.g., course completion certificates, transcripts, receipts).
  - Justification: WDHA has developed a portfolio system for recording courses and other professional development activities. We believe that along with a relatively minor change in the license renewal form, the Professional Development Portfolio would enable the licensee to keep accurate records of their requirements and then if they were ever audited it would serve as documentation and verification.
- One hour of instruction is equal to one credit or unit of CE.
  - Justification: This is the standard in other states that require CE for license renewal.
- That preparing a course for a CE presentation and then presenting it will earn an instructor the same number of credits as those people receiving the instruction. (I.e., If a course offers 6 credits of CEU to the participants, the instructor will earn 6 credits for teaching it.) The instructor may submit the course only once in a renewal cycle for CE credit.
  - Justification: Most states allow the presenters of CE courses to meet their own requirement by presenting a course. It was felt there should be some limitations on how many times in a renewal cycle this should be allowed however.
- Credits may not be carried over into subsequent renewal periods.
  - Justification: This is a standard rule in other states that require CE for license renewal. If a licensee acquires 40 credits (twice the required amount) in one two year renewal cycle, they should not be excused from the requirement for the next two years.

Linda Jorgenson, RDH, BS  
 WDHA President 2003  
 121 N. Third St.  
 River Falls, WI 54022  
 (715) 425-2786 (home phone)  
 (715) 425-2396 (fax)  
 lmjorgensonrdh@yahoo.com

**Kunkel, Mark**

---

**From:** Peter Theo  
**Sent:** Friday, March 28, 2003 10:44 AM  
**To:** Kunkel, Mark  
**Subject:** Re: draft for Dental Hygienist's Mark,

It was our initial intention to have the Dental Examining Board (DEB) address the other issues, via Rule Making. However, after several discussions it seems that they, the DEB, is not too happy to do Adm Rule Making on this stuff. They are not opposed to it, they just don't want to have to do the work. They would prefer that we include as much of the details in the legislation.

Therefore, we would like to have these elements included in the initial proposal.

Thank you again,

Peter----- Original Message -----

**From:** Kunkel, Mark  
**To:** Peter Theo  
**Sent:** Thursday, March 27, 2003 2:58 PM  
**Subject:** RE: draft for Dental Hygienist's

Peter:

The information I received has a "basic proposal" and "additional details" for consideration.

I'm not sure whether the bill request is limited to the basic proposal, or whether to include the additional details.

Please email back or call at your earliest convenience. In the meantime, I will start drafting the basic proposal.

-- Mark

-----Original Message-----

**From:** Peter Theo [mailto:woaptheo@mcleodusa.net]  
**Sent:** Monday, March 24, 2003 10:31 AM  
**To:** Kunkel, Mark  
**Subject:** draft for Dental Hygienist's

Hi Mark:

Senator Roessler's staff, Sara, told me that she passed on a bill draft request to you regarding CE for Dental Hygienist's. I represent them and was wondering if that draft is in the works yet? I have a client meeting coming up this weekend and I wanted to give them an update.

Could you email me or call at 332-6828 (Cell)?

Thanks Mark. I know you are busy so I appreciate your response.

Peter

03/28/2003



*King*

*D-NOTE*

*Tomorrow  
4/1  
P.M.*

### 2003 BILL

1 AN ACT *Men. Cert.*; relating to: requiring continuing education for dental hygienists and  
2 granting rule-making authority.

*two*  
**Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau** *(r)*

Under current law, dental hygienists licensed by the Dentistry Examining Board (board) must apply to renew their licenses every 2 years. Under this bill, the board may not renew a license unless a dental hygienist complies with continuing education requirements. In addition, when applying for renewal, a dental hygienist must submit a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The board must promulgate rules that define such a certification.

*two* Regarding continuing education, the bill requires the board to promulgate rules requiring an applicant for renewal to teach, attend, or otherwise complete, during the preceding 2 years, 20 credit hours of courses or programs approved by the board. The rules must establish criteria for approving the courses or programs. Also, the rules may not allow the board to approve a course or program unless the course or program satisfies specified requirements, including clearly stating the qualifications of persons who present materials and identifying each organization that offers, sponsors, or is affiliated with the course or program.

The bill requires the continuing education courses or programs to include training in basic life support, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and infection control. No more than 2 of the required 20 hours may be satisfied by training in basic life support or cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and no less than 2 of the hours must be satisfied by training in infection control. Also, no more than 5 of the hours may be satisfied by self-study, correspondence, or Internet courses or programs. In addition,

*two*

*two*

*five*

**BILL**

the board's rules must allow an applicant for renewal to substitute uncompensated hours of voluntary activities related to dental hygiene for no more than <sup>five</sup> of the hours.

The bill requires an applicant for renewal to provide a statement attesting that he or she has complied with the continuing education requirements. In addition, the examining board must audit the applications to verify compliance. The board may conduct the audits on a random basis, or another basis determined by the board. Also, the board is allowed to promulgate rules specifying the evidence that is necessary for an applicant to demonstrate compliance with the requirements.

For further information see the *state* fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

1           **SECTION 1.** 447.05 of the statutes is amended to read:

2           **447.05 Expiration and renewal.** Renewal applications shall be submitted  
3 to the department on a form provided by the department on or before the applicable  
4 renewal date specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a) and shall include the applicable  
5 renewal fee specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a). The examining board may not renew  
6 a license to practice dental hygiene unless the application includes a statement  
7 attesting that the applicant has complied with the continuing education  
8 requirements established in rules promulgated under s. 447.055 and proof that the  
9 applicant has a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The  
10 examining board shall promulgate rules defining "a current certification in  
11 cardiopulmonary resuscitation" for purposes of this section.

History: 1989 a. 349; 1991 a. 39.

12           **SECTION 2.** 447.055 of the statutes is created to read:

13           **447.055 Continuing education.** (1) The examining board shall promulgate  
14 rules requiring an applicant for renewal of a license to practice dental hygiene to  
15 teach, attend, or otherwise complete, during the 2-year period immediately  
16 preceding the renewal date specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a), 20 credit hours of

**BILL**

1 continuing education programs or courses that are approved by the examining board  
2 under criteria that are established in the rules, except as provided in the rules  
3 promulgated under sub. (3). Rules promulgated under this subsection may not allow  
4 the examining board to approve a program or course unless all of the following are  
5 satisfied:

6 (a) The qualifications of persons who present<sup>x</sup> program or course materials  
7 are clearly stated and appropriate to the materials presented.

8 (b) Course or program descriptions, outlines, schedules, and objectives, and  
9 references or citations in course or program materials, are clearly stated.

10 (c) The course or program has significant clinical value or scientific content.

11 (d) Each organization that offers, sponsors, or is affiliated with<sup>e</sup> the program  
12 or course is clearly identified.

13 (2) (a) Programs or courses required under sub. (1) shall include training in all  
14 of the following:

15 1. Basic life support or cardiopulmonary resuscitation. No more than 2 of the  
16 credit hours required under sub. (1) may be satisfied by such training.

17 2. Infection control. No less than 2 of the credit hours required under sub. (1)  
18 must be satisfied by such training.

19 (b) No more than 5 of the credit hours required under sub. (1) may be satisfied  
20 by self-study, correspondence, or Internet programs or courses.

21 (3) The rules promulgated under sub. (1) shall allow an applicant for renewal  
22 to substitute uncompensated hours of voluntary activities related to the practice of  
23 dental hygiene for no<sup>✓</sup> more than 5 of the credit hours required under sub. (1).<sup>✓</sup>

24 (4) During each 2-year licensure period, the examining board shall audit, on  
25 a random or other basis determined by the examining board, the applications for

**BILL****SECTION 2**

1 renewal of a license to practice dental hygiene to verify that an applicant has  
2 complied with the requirements under this section. The examining board may  
3 promulgate rules specifying the evidence necessary for an applicant to demonstrate  
4 compliance with the requirements.

5 **SECTION 3. Effective date.**

6 (1) This act takes effect on November 1, 2003, or on the day after publication,  
7 whichever is later.

8 (END)

**DRAFTER'S NOTE**  
**FROM THE**  
**LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-2432/1dn

MDK: /:....

*Kmg*

Senator Roessler:

Please review this bill to make sure that it achieves your intent. In particular, please note the following:

1. An applicant for renewal must submit a statement attesting that he or she has complied with continuing education requirements. The instructions appear to also require that an applicant submit signatures from course sponsors or organizations for which an applicant does volunteer work. I did not include the signature requirement because it seems inconsistent with your intent that an applicant should be required to submit proof of compliance only if he or she is audited by the examining board. Is that okay? Also, the bill allows, but does not require, the examining board to promulgate rules specifying the evidence that may be used to demonstrate compliance. Is that okay?
2. I don't think it's necessary to specify that hours may not be carried over from one 2-year renewal period to the next. As drafted, a licensee must complete 20 hours during a 2-year period. Therefore, carry-over is not allowed.
3. Regarding course sponsors, the instructions require affiliations to be disclosed. I'm not sure what that means. The bill requires organizations that are affiliated with a course to be clearly stated. Is that okay?
4. The bill requires the examining board to promulgate rules defining a "current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation". Rules may not be necessary if the certification requirements are commonly understood. Please let me know whether the rules are okay.
5. "Basic life support" is not defined. Is that okay, or do you want to create a definition comparable to s. 146.50 (1) (d), stats., which defines "basic life support" as "emergency medical care that is rendered to a sick, disabled or injured individual, based on signs, symptoms or complaints, prior to the individual's hospitalization or while transporting the individual between health care facilities and that is limited to use of the knowledge, skills and techniques received from training required for licensure as an emergency medical technician basic, or for certification as a first responder."
6. The bill is delayed until November 1, 2003, or the day after publication, whichever is later. Therefore, the bill will not apply until dental hygienists apply to renew licenses

*A — A*  
*m dash*



that expire on October 1, 2005. Note that, under s. 227.11 (2) (d), stats., the examining board is allowed to promulgate rules for implementing the bill's requirement before the bill actually goes into effect.

Mark D. Kunkel  
Senior Legislative Attorney  
Phone: (608) 266-0131  
E-mail: [mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us](mailto:mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us)

**DRAFTER'S NOTE**  
**FROM THE**  
**LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-2432/1dn  
MDK:kmg:rs

March 31, 2003

Senator Roessler:

Please review this bill to make sure that it achieves your intent. In particular, please note the following:

1. An applicant for renewal must submit a statement attesting that he or she has complied with continuing education requirements. The instructions appear to also require that an applicant submit signatures from course sponsors or organizations for which an applicant does volunteer work. I did not include the signature requirement because it seems inconsistent with your intent that an applicant should be required to submit proof of compliance only if he or she is audited by the examining board. Is that okay? Also, the bill allows, but does not require, the examining board to promulgate rules specifying the evidence that may be used to demonstrate compliance. Is that okay?
2. I don't think it's necessary to specify that hours may not be carried over from one 2-year renewal period to the next. As drafted, a licensee must complete 20 hours during a 2-year period. Therefore, carry-over is not allowed.
3. Regarding course sponsors, the instructions require affiliations to be disclosed. I'm not sure what that means. The bill requires organizations that are affiliated with a course to be clearly stated. Is that okay?
4. The bill requires the examining board to promulgate rules defining a "current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation." Rules may not be necessary if the certification requirements are commonly understood. Please let me know whether the rules are okay.
5. "Basic life support" is not defined. Is that okay, or do you want to create a definition comparable to s. 146.50 (1) (d), stats., which defines "basic life support" as "emergency medical care that is rendered to a sick, disabled or injured individual, based on signs, symptoms or complaints, prior to the individual's hospitalization or while transporting the individual between health care facilities and that is limited to use of the knowledge, skills and techniques received from training required for licensure as an emergency medical technician — basic, or for certification as a first responder."
6. The bill is delayed until November 1, 2003, or the day after publication, whichever is later. Therefore, the bill will not apply until dental hygienists apply to renew licenses

that expire on October 1, 2005. Note that, under s. 227.11 (2) (d), stats., the examining board is allowed to promulgate rules for implementing the bill's requirement before the bill actually goes into effect.

Mark D. Kunkel  
Senior Legislative Attorney  
Phone: (608) 266-0131  
E-mail: [mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us](mailto:mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us)

## 2003 BILL

1 **AN ACT** *to amend* 447.05; and *to create* 447.055 of the statutes; **relating to:**  
2 requiring continuing education for dental hygienists and granting  
3 rule-making authority.

---

### *Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau*

Under current law, dental hygienists licensed by the Dentistry Examining Board (board) must apply to renew their licenses every two years. Under this bill, the board may not renew a license unless a dental hygienist complies with continuing education requirements. In addition, when applying for renewal, a dental hygienist must submit a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The board must promulgate rules that define such a certification.

Regarding continuing education, the bill requires the board to promulgate rules requiring an applicant for renewal to teach, attend, or otherwise complete, during the preceding two-years, 20 credit hours of courses or programs approved by the board. The rules must establish criteria for approving the courses or programs. Also, the rules may not allow the board to approve a course or program unless the course or program satisfies specified requirements, including clearly stating the qualifications of persons who present materials and identifying each organization that offers, sponsors, or is affiliated with the course or program.

The bill requires the continuing education courses or programs to include training in basic life support, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and infection control. No more than two of the required 20 hours may be satisfied by training in basic life support or cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and no less than two of the hours must be

**BILL**

satisfied by training in infection control. Also, no more than <sup>10</sup> five of the hours may be satisfied by self-study, correspondence, or Internet courses or programs. In addition, the board's rules must allow an applicant for renewal to substitute uncompensated hours of voluntary activities related to dental hygiene for no more than five of the hours.

The bill requires an applicant for renewal to provide a statement attesting that he or she has complied with the continuing education requirements. In addition, the examining board must audit the applications to verify compliance. The board may conduct the audits on a random basis, or another basis determined by the board. Also, the board is allowed to promulgate rules specifying the evidence that is necessary for an applicant to demonstrate compliance with the requirements.

For further information see the *state* fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

SECTION 1. 447.05 of the statutes is amended to read:

**447.05 Expiration and renewal.** Renewal applications shall be submitted to the department on a form provided by the department on or before the applicable renewal date specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a) and shall include the applicable renewal fee specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a). The examining board may not renew a license to practice dental hygiene unless the application includes a statement attesting that the applicant has complied with the continuing education requirements established in rules promulgated under s. 447.055 and <sup>attesting</sup> proof that the applicant has a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The examining board shall promulgate rules defining "a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation" for purposes of this section.

SECTION 2. 447.055 of the statutes is created to read:

**447.055 Continuing education.** (1) The examining board shall promulgate rules requiring an applicant for renewal of a license to practice dental hygiene to teach, attend, or otherwise complete, during the 2-year period immediately

alint  
rules  
8

→ generic based  
in other statutes

**BILL**

1 preceding the renewal date specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a), 20 credit hours of  
2 continuing education programs or courses that are approved by the examining board  
3 under criteria that are established in the rules, except as provided in the rules  
4 promulgated under sub. (3). Rules promulgated under this subsection may not allow  
5 the examining board to approve a program or course unless all of the following are  
6 satisfied:

7 (a) The qualifications of persons who present program or course materials are  
8 clearly stated and appropriate to the materials presented.

9 (b) Course or program descriptions, outlines, schedules, and objectives, and  
10 references or citations in course or program materials, are clearly stated.

11 (c) The course or program has significant clinical value or scientific content.

12 (d) Each organization that offers, sponsors, or is affiliated with the program or  
13 course is clearly identified.

14 (2) (a) Programs or courses required under sub. (1) shall include training in all  
15 of the following:

16 *Req* 1. Basic life support or cardiopulmonary resuscitation. No more than 2 of the  
17 credit hours required under sub. (1) may be satisfied by such training.

18 *Req* 2. Infection control. No less than 2 of the credit hours required under sub. (1)  
19 must be satisfied by such training.

20 (b) No more than ~~5~~ <sup>10</sup> of the credit hours required under sub. (1) may be satisfied  
21 by self-study, correspondence, or Internet programs or courses.

22 (3) The rules promulgated under sub. (1) shall allow an applicant for renewal  
23 to substitute uncompensated hours of voluntary activities related to the practice of  
24 dental hygiene for no more than 5 of the credit hours required under sub. (1).

*Req*

**BILL**

1

(4) During each 2-year licensure period, the examining board shall audit, on  
a random or other basis determined by the examining board, the applications for  
renewal of a license to practice dental hygiene to verify that an applicant has  
complied with the requirements under this section. The ~~examining board~~ <sup>may</sup> ~~may~~  
promulgate rules specifying the evidence necessary for an applicant to demonstrate  
compliance with the requirements.

7

**SECTION 3. Effective date.**

8

(1) This act takes effect on November 1, 2003, or on the day after publication,  
whichever is later.

9

10

(END)

3

D-NOTE

RM has been run

Bu  
Thursday  
6/26  
1pm

2003 BILL

attest that he or she has taught, attended,

1 AN ACT to amend 447.05; and to create 447.055 of the statutes; relating to:

2

~~requiring~~ continuing education for dental hygienists and ~~granting~~

3

~~rule-making authority.~~

attests that he or she has

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

attest that he or she has

Under current law, dental hygienists licensed by the Dentistry Examining Board (board) must apply to renew their licenses every two years. Under this bill, the board may not renew a license unless a dental hygienist complies with continuing education requirements. In addition, when applying for renewal, a dental hygienist must submit a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The board must promulgate rules that define such a certification.

Regarding continuing education, the bill requires the board to promulgate rules requiring an applicant for renewal to teach, attend, or otherwise complete, during the preceding two years, 20 credit hours of courses or programs approved by the board. The rules must establish criteria for approving the courses or programs. Also, the rules may not allow the board to approve a course or program unless the course or program satisfies specified requirements, including clearly stating the qualifications of persons who present materials and identifying each organization that offers, sponsors, or is affiliated with the course or program.

The bill requires the continuing education courses or programs to include training in basic life support, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and infection control. No more than two of the required 20 hours may be satisfied by training in basic life support or cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and no less than two of the hours must be

This requirement does not apply the first time that a person applies to renew a license, but applies the second time and each time thereafter.





**BILL**

satisfied by training in infection control. Also, no more than ~~five~~ <sup>ten</sup> of the hours may be satisfied by self-study, correspondence, or Internet courses or programs. In addition, ~~the board's rules must allow an applicant for renewal to substitute uncompensated hours of voluntary activities related to dental hygiene for no more than five of the hours.~~

*is allowed*

*may require submission of proof of*

*finally*

~~The bill requires an applicant for renewal to provide a statement attesting that he or she has complied with the continuing education requirements. In addition, the examining board must audit the applications to verify compliance. The board may conduct the audits on a random basis, or another basis determined by the board. Also, the board is allowed to promulgate rules specifying the evidence that is necessary for an applicant to demonstrate compliance with the requirements.~~

For further information see the *state* fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

*require such proof*

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

*with the continuing education requirements*

*for renewal*

1 SECTION 1. 447.05 of the statutes is amended to read:

2 **447.05 Expiration and renewal.** Renewal applications shall be submitted  
3 to the department on a form provided by the department on or before the applicable  
4 renewal date specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a) and shall include the applicable  
5 renewal fee specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a). The examining board may not renew  
6 a license to practice dental hygiene unless the ~~application~~ <sup>applicant attests</sup> includes a statement  
7 ~~attesting~~ <sup>he or she</sup> that ~~the~~ applicant has complied with ~~the~~ continuing education  
8 ~~requirements established in rules promulgated under s. 447.055 and~~ <sup>proof that the</sup>  
9 ~~applicant~~ <sup>that he or she</sup> has a current certification in cardiopulmonary resuscitation. ~~The~~  
10 examining board shall promulgate rules defining "a current certification in  
11 cardiopulmonary resuscitation" for purposes of this section.

12 SECTION 2. 447.055 of the statutes is created to read:

13 **447.055 Continuing education.** (1) ~~The examining board shall promulgate~~  
14 ~~rules requiring an applicant for renewal of a license to practice dental hygiene to~~  
15 ~~teach <sup>d</sup> attend or otherwise complete~~ during the 2-year period immediately

*Except as provided in subs. (3) and (4), a person is not eligible*

*unless he or she has taught, attended,*

**BILL**

1 preceding the renewal date specified under s. 440.08 (2) (a), 20 credit hours of  
 2 continuing education ~~programs or courses that are approved by the examining board~~  
 3 ~~under criteria that are established in the rules, except as provided in the rules~~  
 4 ~~promulgated under sub. (3). Rules promulgated under this subsection may not allow~~  
 5 ~~the examining board to approve a program or course unless all of the following are~~  
 6 ~~satisfied:~~

7 ~~(a) The qualifications of persons who present program or course materials are~~  
 8 ~~clearly stated and appropriate to the materials presented.~~

9 ~~(b) Course or program descriptions, outlines, schedules, and objectives, and~~  
 10 ~~references or citations in course or program materials, are clearly stated.~~

11 ~~(c) The course or program has significant clinical value or scientific content.~~

12 ~~(d) Each organization that offers, sponsors, or is affiliated with the program or~~  
 13 ~~course is clearly identified.~~

14 ~~(2) (a) Programs or courses required under sub. (1) shall include training in all~~ *including*  
 15 ~~of the following:~~

16 ~~(a)~~ *(a)* Basic life support or cardiopulmonary resuscitation. No more than 2 of the  
 17 credit hours required under ~~sub. (1)~~ *this subsection* may be satisfied by such training. *this subsection*

18 ~~(b)~~ *(b)* Infection control. No less than 2 of the credit hours required under ~~sub. (1)~~  
 19 must be satisfied by such training.

20 ~~(b)~~ *(b)* No more than ~~2~~ *10* of the credit hours required under sub. (1) may be satisfied  
 21 by self-study, correspondence, or Internet programs or courses.

22 ~~(3) The rules promulgated under sub. (1) shall allow an applicant for renewal~~  
 23 ~~to substitute uncompensated hours of voluntary activities related to the practice of~~  
 24 ~~dental hygiene for no more than 5 of the credit hours required under sub. (1).~~

A person may

INSERT  
3-21 ✓

**BILL**

**SECTION 2**

*may require*

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10

(1) During each 2-year licensure period the examining board ~~shall~~ *may* on

a random or other basis determined by the examining board, ~~the applications~~ *for applicants*

renewal of a license to practice dental hygiene to ~~verify that~~ *of* an applicant has

~~complied~~ *with* the requirements ~~of~~ *of* this section. ~~The examining board may~~

~~promulgate rules specifying the evidence necessary for an applicant to demonstrate~~

~~compliance with the requirements~~

**SECTION 3. Effective date.**

(1) This act takes effect on November 1, 2003, or on the day after publication,

whichever is later.

(END)

*submit proof of compliance*

**2003-2004 DRAFTING INSERT  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-2432/2ins  
MDK:.....

1

**INSERT 3-21:**

2

(3) Subsection (1) does not apply to an applicant for renewal of a license that

3

expires on the first renewal date after the date on which the examining board

4

initially granted the license.

**DRAFTER'S NOTE  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-2432/2dn

MDK:.....  
*King*

Sen. Roessler:

This version makes changes discussed with Peter Theo. Please contact me if you have questions or redrafting instructions.

Mark D. Kunkel  
Senior Legislative Attorney  
Phone: (608) 266-0131  
E-mail: [mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us](mailto:mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us)

**DRAFTER'S NOTE  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

LRB-2432/2dn  
MDK:kmg:jf

June 25, 2003

Sen. Roessler:

This version makes changes discussed with Peter Theo. Please contact me if you have questions or redrafting instructions.

Mark D. Kunkel  
Senior Legislative Attorney  
Phone: (608) 266-0131  
E-mail: [mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us](mailto:mark.kunkel@legis.state.wi.us)

**Mentkowski, Annie**

---

**From:** Jermstad, Sara  
**Sent:** Friday, July 11, 2003 3:13 PM  
**To:** LRB.Legal  
**Subject:** Draft review: LRB 03-2432/2 Topic: Continuing education for dental hygienists

It has been requested by <Jermstad, Sara> that the following draft be jacketed for the SENATE:

Draft review: LRB 03-2432/2 Topic: Continuing education for dental hygienists